London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham

Health & Wellbeing h&f\\/

Boa rd hammersmith & fulham
Minutes

Wednesday 10 September 2025
PRESENT

Committee members

Councillor Alex Sanderson (Deputy Leader with responsibility for Children and
Education)

Dr James Cavanagh (H&F GP)

Caroline Farrar (HCP Managing Director)

Dr Nicola Lang (Director of Public Health)

Katharine Willmette (Interim Director of Adult Social Care)

Jacqui McShannon (Executive Director of People’s Services)

Sarah Bright (Director of People’s Commissioning, Transformation and Partnerships)
Susan Roostan (H&F ICB Borough Director)

Sue Spiller (Chief Executive Officer, SOBUS)

Nominated Deputy Members

Councillor Natalia Perez (Chair of Health and Adult Social Care Policy and
Accountability Committee)

Councillor Helen Rowbottom (Chair of Children and Education Policy and
Accountability Committee)

Other attendees

Fiona Bateman (Independent Chair of the Hammersmith & Fulham Safeguarding
Adults Board)

Navneet Willoughby (Central London Community NHS Healthcare Trust)

Matt Ayres (Imperial College NHS Trust)

Vincent Law (West London NHS Trust)

Diane Barham (Healthwatch)

Detective Inspector Shakila Khan (Metropolitan Police)

David Abbott (Head of Governance)

NOTE: This meeting was held remotely as an informal meeting.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Bora Kwon and James
Cavanagh.

Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.



DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

MINUTES AND ACTIONS

The minutes of the meeting held on 23 June 2025 were agreed as an accurate
record.

BETTER CARE FUND PLAN 2025-2026 AND QUARTER 1 REPORT 2025-2026

Sarah Bright (Director of People’s Commissioning, Transformation and Partnerships)
gave a brief overview of the report. The Board agreed to defer the recommendations
to the next formal meeting.

RESOLVED
1. That the Health and Wellbeing Board deferred approval of the

recommendations to the following meeting.

HAMMERSMITH & FULHAM SAFEGUARDING ADULTS BOARD ANNUAL
REPORT 2024/25

Fiona Bateman (Independent Chair of the Hammersmith & Fulham Safeguarding
Adults Board) presented the report. She explained that the Board was a multi-
agency partnership between the local authority, health partners, and the police. The
annual report focused on the core operation of the Board, the Safeguarding Adults
Reviews (SARs) carried out by the Safeguarding Adults Case Review Group
(SACRG). The SACRG was a subgroup of the Board and their responsibilities
included reviewing referrals where cases may meet criteria for a SAR, as well as
monitoring responses to recommendations from previous reviews.

Fiona Bateman said the Board wanted to ensure that decision making was robust
and confident and the SARs were populated by appropriate people, who could reflect
and implement learning that came from the reviews. She said that was a key focus
for the Board — for organisations to evidence what they had done to implement the
learning from reviews in operational practice and strategies.

Fiona Bateman explained that the SARs were human stories that provided a solid
evidence base for changes in policy and practice. It was important not to lose sight of
the reasons for improvements. She said it required everyone to be open and
transparent. Her goal was for the reviews to influence strategic decision making and
she wanted the board to make progress on that in the coming year.

The Chair thanked Fiona Bateman for the report and presentation and opened the
floor to questions.

Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.



Sue Spiller highlighted the issues of cultural sensitivity raised in the report and noted
that in some communities there was still a mistrust of safeguarding and felt more
thought needed to be given to the information that went out to them. She also
discussed the importance of building cultural sensitivity for staff and suggested
awareness sessions to make safeguarding services feel more accessible and
approachable.

Fiona Bateman said cultural competency was a very important area for the Board
and one that she hoped to have much greater impact on over next year. The Board
were also looking at cultural competency work across London and how it could be
adapted locally. She agreed that some of the language used was not very accessible
and there was room to simplify and give a clearer message. She said there would be
more to report on this next year.

Councillor Natalia Perez welcomed the report and asked for more information on the
steps that were being taken to empower vulnerable adults to make decisions about
their own care and support needs. Fiona Bateman said there was always a balance
to be had between the statutory duty to safeguard and people’s wishes. There were
circumstances where people could have a reduced capacity to keep themselves safe
— for example in cases of long-term trauma, substance misuse, or domestic abuse.
She said the Board was scrutinising the data in this area closely.

Jacqui McShannon (Executive Director of People’s Services) thanked Fiona
Bateman for the report and said the Council welcomed her leadership as
Independent Chair. She asked how the Board used performance data proactively to
surface practice issues early.

Fiona Bateman said the quality and practice sub-group scrutinised data from
agencies carefully. She gave the example of working with the Council’s Adult Social
Care team who had been very open with the Board to look at areas for improvement.
The Board looked at areas such as transitional safeguarding and homelessness,
pulling data from a range of sources to look at how resources could best be targeted.
She said the Board was very data-driven and was keen to evidence all
recommendations with robust data.

Katharine Willmette (Interim Director of Adult Social Care) echoes Jacqui
McShannon’s comments and thanked Fiona Bateman for the report and her
leadership. She welcomed the greater focus on performance data from a variety of
sources, noting that historically it had been very local authority focused, but looking
across partners gave a more accurate picture and would lead to better outcomes.

The Chair asked if there was Councillor representation on the Safeguarding Adults
Board. It was noted that the Safeguarding Adults Board had been fully supported by
Councillor Lucy Richardson.

Fiona Bateman and members discussed the benefits of her attending meetings of
the Health and Wellbeing Board in her role as Independent Chair of the
Safeguarding Adults Board. The Chair welcomed the suggestion and said she would
be a valuable addition.

Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.



ACTION: David Abbott
RESOLVED

1. That the Health and Wellbeing Board noted the report.

IMPROVING ADULT COMMUNITY SPECIALIST PALLIATIVE CARE SERVICES
FOR RESIDENTS IN NORTH WEST LONDON

Sue Roostan (H&F ICB Borough Director) presented the item on Improving adult
community specialist palliative care services for all residents in North West London.
She highlighted the following key points:
e A new hospice at home service was planned to provide 24/7 enhanced care
for those in their final weeks of life.
e Residents would be able to access specialist hospice inpatient beds at all
North West London hospice.
e Five new enhanced end-of-life care beds were planned.
e The 24/7 advice line would be expanded to people not known to the service.
e Enhanced bereavement support would be put in place with a clear pathway
for access and support.

Sue Roostan said the plan was to have contracts in place with providers by 1
October 2025. A workshop was planned for mid-October to engage with residents on
end-of-life bed locations.
The Chair welcomed the update and the enhanced service.
RESOLVED

1. The Health and Wellbeing Board supported the implementation of the

enhanced service.

HAMMERSMITH & FULHAM HEALTH AND CARE PARTNERSHIP - 10 YEAR
HEALTH PLAN UPDATE

Caroline Farrar (HCP Managing Director) presented an update on the Hammersmith
& Fulham Health and Care Partnership’s 10 Year Health Plan. She explained that
the plan was designed to address the fact that services were becoming more
unsustainable. The plan recommended three key shifts — from hospital to
community, from analogue to digital, and from sickness to prevention.

Caroline Farrar acknowledged that it was a time of significant change in the NHS,
with changes to the operating model at national, regional, and Integrated Care Board
(ICB) levels. There were still some questions around how these changes would be
delivered, but she said there were real opportunities too. She said the Health and
Care Partnership would take the rest of the financial year to solidify their thinking and
develop plans and noted that the Health and Wellbeing Strategy may have to be
revisited as that came into focus.

Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.



The Chair thanked Caroline for the update. She said the Council was very keen to be
involved in any preventative pilots.

Jacqui McShannon (Executive Director of People’s Services) asked what attention
was being given to children and young people and how the integrated
neighbourhood approach could be used to bring services to children and young
people.

Caroline Farrar said the plan was intended to be a whole population approach. She
noted that at a workshop last week that brought together colleagues from Health and
the Integrated Care Board to explore prevention work aimed at keeping young
people out of crisis. She noted there were other elements such as the Children’s
Social Care reforms that partners needed to work through together.

Jacqui McShannon said she understood there was new health guidance around
multi-disciplinary approaches and asked if that was something health colleagues
were thinking about. She said she was keen for children and young people to be
high on the agenda and said there were opportunities to be creative going forward.

Caroline Farrar said she had not seen the guidance yet but had recently attended
the Families First for Children Pathfinder to learn about the work being done to better
connect local authority and health services to ensure professionals were responding
early to situations, keeping children safe and supporting their development.

Councillor Natalia Perez asked how the Partnership was envisaging the shift from
analogue to digital. Caroline Farrar said a lot of the focus in the plan was on the NHS
app, which she felt was very easy to use but said many people were still not aware
of it. She said there needed to be a focus on digital exclusion. She also highlighted
new technologies such as ambient voice technology and artificial intelligence but
noted there were clinical governance guestions around their use. She noted that the
partnership was also looking at how to make the most of their data and improved
analytics to identify opportunities.

Navneet Willoughby (Central London Community NHS Healthcare Trust), in
response to Jacqui McShannon’s earlier question, said as a provider of children’s
services in H&F, she fully supported the Partnership’s work and noted there were
groups formed to look at performance management and strategy. She also
acknowledged the point about the focus often being on adults over children and
wanted to reinforce support for children and young people.

The Chair said consideration should be given to adding a schools or education
representative to the Board.

ACTION: David Abbott to follow up

Sue Spiller raised the issue of digital inclusion and noted that some people not using
digital pathways felt they were getting a worse service. The Chair said the Council’s
preferred approach to digital exclusion was to support people to enable them to
access digital services.

Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.



10.

RESOLVED

1. That the Health and Wellbeing Board noted the update.

CENTRAL LONDON COMMUNITY HEALTHCARE (CLCH) ORGANISATIONAL
STRATEGY

Navneet Willoughby (Director of Operations for Inner Boroughs at CLCH) presented
the CLCH Organisational Strategy. She noted that the strategy had four pillars:

To improve health and healthcare outcomes

To tackle inequalities in outcomes, experience, and access

To enhance productivity and value for money

To help the NHS support broader economic development

Navneet Willoughby explained that the core of the strategy was to create a
flourishing Neighbourhood Health Service to provide seamless community care. To
achieve that the Trust planned to work in partnership to develop a core offer, co-
develop integrated models with partners and communities, and create an integrated
workforce through education and development of staff. CLCH planned to use a Trust
Management System to hold themselves to high standards and use data and
evidence, test new ideas, and seek feedback to understand where there were
opportunities for improvement.

Jacqui McShannon (Executive Director of People’s Services) spoke about the
constructive relationship between CLCH and the Council, noting that it was very
solution focused. She said there were difficult issues to grapple with, but there was a
mutual desire to work together to achieve the best outcomes. Navneet Willoughby
thanked Jacqui McShannon for her comments and agreed that there were
challenging problems that could only be solved together.

RESOLVED

1. That the Health and Wellbeing Board noted and commented on the strategy.

WORK PROGRAMME

The Chair noted that members and partners were welcome to email suggestions for
the work programme to the clerk.

DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS

The following dates of future meetings were noted:-
e 3 December 2025 (to be moved to 21 January 2026)
e 18 March 2026
e 22 June 2026

Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.



The Chair noted that a new Healthwatch provider had recently been appointed and
Diane Barham, Chief Executive of Local Voice, would be appointed to the Board at
its next meeting. She said she looked forward to working with Diane going forward.
The Chair then took a moment to thank the previous Healthwatch representatives,
Carleen Duffy and Nadia Taylor, for their contributions to the Board over the years.

Meeting started: 6.35 pm
Meeting ended: 7.52 pm

Chair

Contact officer.  David Abbott
Governance and Scrutiny
Tel: 07776 672877
Email: David.Abbott@Ibhf.gov.uk

Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.



